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The Peak House is a typical 17th-century cottage of one-reoom plan, one
and one-half stories in height. Its most unusual and salient feature is its
exceptionally steep pitched roof, the highest piteh on record in the Common=
wealth of Massafhusetts* for a l7th-century house. In addition to the first
floor and that of the original loft area the collar beams of the roof have
been floored over as well to provide an attie in the roof. There is a full
cellar under the structure. The house is 24 feet long, 14 feec 10 inches
wide, 10 feet from the ground to the eaves, and 12 feet from the eaves to the
top of the roof. The four exterier walls and the roof are covered with wood-
en shingles. The eight window openings are furnished with restored casement
sash, having diamond-shaped panes set in lead. The batten door at the fromt
(southern) side of the house is also a restoration feature and is character-
istic of 1l7th-century doors having vertical boards on the exterior and hori-
zontal beards on the interior.

Oon the first floor there is a small entry with an enclosed staircase
leading to the second floor. The large main room contains three windows.
Behind the fireplace wall there is a small room with one window. A door in
this small room opens to the cellar stairs.

The cellar has a dirt floor and walls of fieldstone set with lime and
mortar. 1In the northeast corner under the stairway there is a section laid
dry (without mortar) which may very well represent the original condition.
In the center there is a stone and brick arch of the 18th century which
supports the modern (restored) fireplace and chimney. (See supplementary
photograph #1)

The second floor contains one large room with a window in each end, and
the exposed tapering chimney stack. A steep, open, ladder-like set of stairs
leads to the third or attiec story which has a small, diamond-paned leaded
window at each end.

The frame of the house is exposed throughout, as will appear in the
supplementary photographs referred to below.

A1l the interior walls of the first and second stories are sheathed with

horizontal boards, those at the west end of the house being original and nice-
ly molded. Early if not original sheathing is apparent also on the southeast

wall of the stairwell. (See supplementary photos #2 and #3)

The four story-and-one-half corner posts are shouldered or flaired, hav-
ing a "gunstock" profile. (Supplementary photos #2, #3, and {4)

The central summer beam is nicely chamfered, and the joists which are
framed into it and which form the support of the floor of the second story
appear to have been cut by an early up and down saw mill, (Supplementary
photo #5) A saw mill was built in Medfield in 1673 as we.are informed by
Tilden's History of Medfield, page 75. The first and second floors are laid
with wide boards in double layers.

* Reference - A. L. Cummings.
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7. Deseription, continued

(See Photo #6); mortise

The frame of the roof is exposed and noteworthy for the sophistica-
tion of its jointing system:

which are footed in the end girts (serving as tie beams) and which, there-
fore, resist compression; while dovetail tenons (see Photo #7) are used
for those collars which are housed in rafters bird-mouthed over the plate
and which therefore, lacking a tie-beam, are in tension.

the rafters are bridle-jointed at their apex
and tenon joints are used for those collar beams
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ARCHITECTURE

The architectural significance of the Peak House is noteworthy on
several counts, : !

(1) The one-room,story and one-half cottage, as we have said, is :
characteristic of the 17th century. In the early years of settlement it was
probably one of the commoner forms of settler's cottage. In most cases, !
however, these first houses have been added to or in other respects SO |
altered through the years that we have literally no more than this single
survivor of a generiec type once COmmOmN.

(2) Having said that it was characteristiec, we must proceced at once
to describe certain features or conditions which, in light of our current
knowledge of 17th century architecture, reveal it as quite unusual.

(a) There is no immediate evidence surviving in the physical
fabriec of the building to suggest the location of an original 17th century
chimney. The house, in other words, lacks any evidence of the normal ;
arrangement of a chimney bay at one end of the one-room house. Some slight
structural evidence discovered at the time the house was restored in 1924
might indicate that a chimney had been located on the front {southern) wall
of the house, but until this fact has been verified, the house must be con- !
gsidered to partake of some planning convention of which we have little direct
knowledge at the present. ;

(b) As noted earlier, the pitch of its roof is the highest on
record in the Commonwealth of Massachusetts for the 17th century, reflecting’
a post-Medieval English tradition, but with no other apparent practiecal |
rTeason. y ’

(¢) So far as Abbott L. Cummings, who compiled section 7 |
(Description); and section 8 (Significance, Architecture) is aware, this
house has the earliest known example of a roof form which may subsequently
turn out to bhe of innovational significance in New England, consisting
entirely of principal rafters without purlins. No immediate English
precedent for such a ronf form is known, and it would appear that it i3 a
development of the communities inland from the coast of Massachusetts
towards the end of the 17th century.

{Continued)
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(3) The house was very thoroughly restored in 1924 with the advice of
William Sumner Appleton, Correspondence Secretary of the Soclety of the
Preservation of New England Antiquities. His expert knowledge was drawn upon
continually in thé evaluation of evidence, and a complete photographic and
documentary record of the restoration which he made at that time is on file
in the $PNEA Library. The house, then, takes its place among those very well
authenticated restorations in New England in the early 20th century, which 1is
owed almost entirely to the wisdom and forethoupght of Mr. Appleton in recogniz-
ing the kinds of gquestions which might be asked by a later generation.

(4) The restoration of 1924 does not appear to have altered the basic
framework of the house, as evidenced by the following:

{a) A comparison of the interior photographs taken in 1924 * just as
the restoration began, with those made in 1970 *#%, shows that virtually no
basic structural changes had been made in the interwval. (The following, how-
ever, were removed in 1924; lath, plaster, and wallpaper, two outside doors on
the north and east walls of the first floor, and interior partitions on the
second floor.)

(b) John Warner Barber's drawing of "Ancient House in Medfield",
made in 1839, shows the batten door:; four windews, west and south, and the
chimpey in the exact positions of today. Also, Barber's description of the
arrangement of the first floor space corresponds to that now existing, except
‘that a change in the relative size of the two rooms is evident from paint marks
and from the distance between the summer beams and the partiticn.

(¢) The location of the chimney and fireplace, recreated in the
1924 restoration, was determined by the masonry arch in the cellar, shown in
both the 1924 and the 1970 photos. The small brick chimney inside the arch
1s not in the 1924 picture, and was apparently added during the restoration,
probably to permit a small furnace to be added. (See chimney report of
Barbara Leighton)

(d) Further details of the restoration given in the minutes of the
Medfield Historical Society for October 5, 1925 show that considerable care
was exercised regarding authenticity in necessary replacements; e.5.,

The fireplace was put back with old hand-made bricks from Millis.
Oven - Upper door from Millis poor-house. .
Lower door from Clark Tavern (next door to Peak House).
Where the original timbers needed replacing, exdct reproductions
were made.

"The window frames and eight original panes of glass had been pre-
served, and with the aid of Mr. Appleton of the Boston Society for
the Preservation of New England Antiguities had been carefully copied
and leaded for the windows." '

¥ 1In files of SPNEA, 141 Cambridpe Street, Boston
#% Tn files of Medfield Uistorieal Society, 6 Pleasant Street, Medfield

&
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8. SIGNIFICANCE - EDUCATION

o
The Peak House is an important museum of early colonial living for the
following reasons:

(A) The architectural details summarized above in 7 (Description), and
in 8 (Architecture) illustrate early colonial censtruction methods.

(B) The position of the house (facing south) shows the wisdom of the
early settlers in taking advantage of solar heat. :

(C) The display of early cooking utensils (including iron pots and
kettles, spiders, tin reflector meat roaster and similar biscuit
baker, toaster, ladles, skimmer and iron peel) demonstrates all
phases of colonial cocking. {All these utensils are in geood condi-
tion and have been used very recently for cooking in the fireplace.

- The oven in the chimney works, and bread has been baked in it.)

(D) The hatchel, carders, large wool spinning wheel, clock yarn winder
and tape loom all illustrate the process of cloth-making before the
Industrial Revolution.

(E) The grain sickle, harness maker's wise, cheese basket, wooden curd=-
breaker, tin candle mold, foot warmer, and watchman's rattle all
represent facets of our forefathers' way of life. -

GUIDED TOURS are conducted by the Medfield Historical Society from May
through October for scheol pupils (kindergarten through senior high), and adult
groups. Emphasis on the varicus phases of colonial life listed above varies
according to the age and interests of the group.

PEAK HOUSE IS OPEN TO THE PUBLIC on Sunday afternmoens from two to five,
during July and August; and on other special occasions.

DEMONSTRATIONS of weaving and wool-spinning are presented on specified
days.

THERE IS NO ADMISSTION CHARGE, but contributions are appreciated.

o

THE VISITORS NUMBER SEVERAL HUNDRED EACH YEAR.
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8, SIGNIFICANCE - POLITICAL

The Clarkéfamily to which the Peak House belonged from 1677 until about
1817 or 1818 played an active role in Medfield town affairs for three genera-
tions: . i

Benjamin, (16%44-1724), first owner of the Peak House, was a Selectman
during 17 years of the period 1685 to 1712.

Seth, (1687 to 1756) was Town Treasurer in 1737, and Selectman for
five years.

Seth, (1714 to 1805) "one of the most influential men in town"
(Tilden, p. 350) served four years in the 1760's as a Selectman.

In addition, the Clarks participated in the government of the Province of
Massachusetts Bay in both the 17th and 18th centuries:

Benjamin was Representative to the General Court in 1699.

Seth, junior, was Representative in 1765 and 1768, and delegate to the
Provincial Cengress in 1775, thus participating in the historic
critical decisions of the stirring years preceding the break with
England.

B. SIGNIFICANCE - SOCIAL

Despite its age, small size, and a minimum of "modern conveniences', the
Peak House was lived in until the early twentieth century with a certain degree
of comfort and dignity.

A photograph owned by the Medfield Historical Society shows the second

floor attractively furnished in Victorian style when a young artist,

John Francis, and his bride lived there as tenants in the 1880's. In

another photo, of the turn of the century, the house is surrounded by

a neat lawn and flower beds. :

Mrs. Edna Newell Huebener, who has lived at 368 Maln Street since her
early childhood, used to play with the Dow children whose parents were
tenants in the Peak House at the turn of the century. Nrs. Huebener
remenbers a stove and sink on the first floor, but no fireplace.
{Photographs taken in October 1924, when the rtestoration was just starting
confirm Mrs, Huebener's recollections concerning the® latter point.)

(Continued)
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8. Social, Centinued

Mr. Frederick Mason Smith, the last individual owner of the Peak House,
devoted it to a purpose well suited to its long history. A carriage

pailnier by trade, he used the house as a workshup where lLe did heantdify
work redecorating antigque chairg, and reverse painting on mirroers. i

it was his auworeciation of Lhe chavm and historic fwnorfance of the T
house that led him to deed it to the Medfield Historical Society in T4/s
with tue proviso that it siouid never pe worigaged, and tnat Li e
Societv should not be able to maintain it. it should he deeded to an org-—
anization devoted to preserving New England Antiguities

-«
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